City of Falls City, OR Historic Landmark Commission

Wednesday, December 13, 2023 at 6:00 pm

Notice of Meeting

Meeting Location; 320 N Main St. Falls City, Or 97344

Amy Houghtaling, Guy Mack, Mike McConnell, Paul King, Nick Backus

- 1. Call to Order
- 2. Pledge of Allegiance
- 3. Motion to Adopt the Entire Agenda
- 4. Consent Agenda
 - a. November 8, 2023 Minutes

Attachments:

- Minutes (Landmark_11-08-23.pdf)
- 5. Public Comments
- 6. Old Business
- 7. New Business
 - a. Best Practices for Recording Oral History

Attachments:

- Best Practices (Best_Practices_for_Oral_History.pdf)
- **How To** (How_to_Do_Oral_History.pdf)
- b. Brainstorm Oral History Participant List
- 8. Correspondence, Comments and Ex-Officio Reports
- 9. Committee Announcements
- 10. Adjourn

Contact: Jeremy Teal (jteal@fallscityoregon.gov 503.787.3631) | Agenda published on 12/11/2023 at 2:52 PM

City of Falls City Historic Landmark Commission

Wednesday November 8, 2023 at 6:00 pm Meeting Location: 320 N Main Street Falls City

Commission Members Present

Amy Houghtaling, Mike McConnell, Paul King, Nick Backus, Guy Mack. Commission was joined by FCHS instructor, Josh Wagner and FCHS Principal, Micke Kidd.

1) Roll Call

Chair Houghtaling called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM, took roll call.

2) Pledge of Allegiance

Chair Houghtaling led the Commission in the Pledge of Allegiance.

3) Motion to Adopt the entire Agenda

Member Backus moved and member McConnell seconded **to adopt the Entire Agenda**. Motion passed 5-0-0 Ayes. Amy Houghtaling, Mike McConnell, Paul King, Nick Backus, Guy Mack.

4) Consent Agenda Motion

Member King moved and Chair Houghtaling seconded to approve minutes for 10/11/23. Motion passed 4-0-0 Ayes. Amy Houghtaling, Mike McConnell, Paul King, Nick Backus.

- 5) Public Comment None
- 6) Old Business None

7) New Business

a. Possible Oral History Project

Chair Houghtaling informed us that Member King suggested collecting Oral Histories of Falls City, Commission agrees. Project would be audio recordings and possibly video or photographs of former and current residents of Falls City.

Josh Wagner, FCHS Instructor, asked what was the end goal? Where would the histories reside? City Website, Polk County Museum, FCHS, YouTube? Mr. Wagner informed the Commission that he has a photographer interested in documenting the participants as well as a High School student that might assist. He also suggested the best time to do this project (interviewing/photographing) would be over the Summer Break and Mr. Wagner could teach a class in audio and video/photographing editing. Member McConnell suggested that after the interviews were finished, the participants could gather together for additional discussion. Many other good suggestions as how to accomplish this project were presented by various members.

b. Survey For Interest in Providing Oral History

Survey could be posted on Face Book, City website, in Utility billing, etc. to see who might be interested in providing their recollections of Falls City's past. Commission should also make a list of potential Interviewees to reach out to (Please see Attached List).

8) Correspondence, Comments and Ex-Officio Report

9) Committee Announcements

Next meeting December 13, 2023.

	Mack moved and Member Backus seconded we adjourn . Motion carried 5-0-0 Ayes. ling, Mike McConnell, Paul King, Nick Backus, Guy Mack. Meeting adjourned at
	Historic Landmark Commissioner Chair Houghtaling
Attested:	Historic Landmark Committee Member

Potential Interviewees

Ron/Paulette Carey

Michael Cox

Wayne/Leotta Scott

Philip Ames Kenny Graham Jim Krummel

Bruce/Keith/Jim Ferguson Karen/Steve/Tom Gilmore

Mary/Ramona Frink Shirley McBeth

George/Mike Roberts

Alan Wade Jack/Mary Kidd Doug Inman Milli Woolers (?) Nancy Hibbs

Michael/Joey(?) McAllister

Bill Gilbert
Philip Jones
David Graham
Lois Grippin

Rick/Steve Ferguson

Bill Diehm

John/Cheryl Barton Bonnie Overhauser (?) Dennis/Lori/etc..Sickles

Don Poe

Julie Sutherland Brian Dowell

There are many more I could name but I am limiting this now and we can add ,more later.

Best Practices for Oral History

Four key elements of oral history work are preparation, interviewing, preservation, and access. Oral historians should give careful consideration to each at the start of any oral history project, regardless of whether it is comprised of one or many interviews. This brief document presents the Oral History Association's guidelines for how to conduct a high-quality oral history interview;[1] it highlights some standard practices that should help produce historically valuable and ethically conducted interviews.

Preparation

- 1. First-time interviewers and others involved in oral history projects should seek training,[2] whether they are conducting individual research or developing a community or an institutional project.
- 2. During initial preparation, oral historians should locate an appropriate repository[3] to house the project's finished oral histories and other documentation. Oral historians should take care to select a repository that aligns with the project's goals, has the capacity to preserve the oral histories, can enforce[4] any signed agreements, and will make them accessible to the public.
- 3. Oral historians should outline an oral history process appropriate for their projects and their narrators. They should consult the complete suite of Oral History Association Principles & Best Practices documents for guidance, but whenever possible, the process should include the following: obtaining and documenting the informed consent of the narrator; when possible providing the narrator an opportunity to approve the oral history prior to public release; and sharing expectations about the overall project timeline. At this stage, the oral historian also should develop forms appropriate for documenting the process and related agreements.
- 4. Oral historians should choose potential narrators based on the relevance of their experiences to the subject at hand, while striving to identify and incorporate as many diverse voices as possible.
- 5. The process of engaging with potential narrators can be relatively simple and brief or involve multiple conversations.[5] The process typically entails two facets: first, describing the project and process and securing the informed consent of the narrator and second, holding a preinterview discussion to assist in the interviewer's preparation. These meetings, regardless of their formality, are important in establishing rapport between interviewer and narrator and allowing for clear communication of the following elements:
- a. The oral history's purposes in terms of topics to be covered and general research questions under study, and reasons for conducting the interview
- b. The full oral history procedure, including when and how the interview will be recorded, a description of any review process, the plans for preservation and access, the potential uses of the oral history, and the need for informed consent and other legal forms to be signed
- c. The narrator's expectations for the oral history—what they want to get out of the process, what topics are meaningful to them, and what questions they should be asked
- d. When an understanding on how to proceed is reached, a formal record of that agreement should be completed prior to [6] the beginning of recording.

Narrators, find out more about what to expect here.

- 6. In preparing to ask informed questions, interviewers should become familiar with the person, topic, and historical context by doing research in primary and secondary sources, as well as through social engagement with individuals and communities and informal one-on-one interactions.
- 7. Interviewers should create, when possible, a high-quality recording of the interview(audio or video format) to capture the narrator's interview accurately with consideration of future audiences and long-term preservation.
- 8. Interviewers should prepare an open-ended guide[7] or outline of the themes to be covered and general questions to be asked before conducting the interview. Interviewers should educate themselves about different interviewing strategies with the goal of encouraging the narrator provide the fullest responses to the questions as possible. (See interviewing section below for more details.)

9. Oral historians should recognize that their narrators are not just isolated individuals; they are members of communities, some of whom have historically complex relationships with researchers. When planning an oral history project, interviewers are advised to think about whether they want to engage with those communities in a formal, organized way. Oral historians may decide to develop a plan for community engagement that benefits both the project and the community. These plans for bringing communities into the oral history process might include the creation of a community advisory board, hosting events for sharing research findings, providing oral history training, and more.

Interviewing

- 1. The interview should be conducted, whenever possible, in a quiet location with minimal background noises and possible distractions, unless part of the oral history process includes gathering soundscapes or ambient sounds.
- 2. The interviewer should record a lead-in at the beginning of each session. It should consist of contextual information, [8] such as:
- a. names, or when appropriate, pseudonyms, of narrator and interviewer;
- b. full date (day, month, year) of recording session;
- c. location of the interview (being mindful to not list personal residence address, but rather generic "narrator's home"); and
- d. proposed subject of the recording.
 - 3. Both parties should agree in advance to the approximate length of each interview session. Given the unpredictability of the setting, however, the interviewer should be flexible and prepared for the session to be cut short, interrupted, or possibly to run long, if both parties agree.
 - 4. Along with asking open-ended questions and actively listening to the answers, interviewers should ask follow-up questions, seeking additional clarification, elaboration, and reflection. When asking questions, the interviewer should keep the following in mind:
- a. Interviews should be conducted in accord with any prior agreements made with narrator, and interviewers must respect the rights of interviewees to refuse to discuss certain subjects, to restrict access to the interview, or, under certain circumstances, to choose a pseudonym. Interviewers should clearly explain these options and how they would be carried out to all narrators during the pre-interview. b. Interviewers should work to achieve a balance between the objectives of the project and the perspectives of their narrators. Interviewers should provide challenging and perceptive inquiry, fully and respectfully exploring appropriate subjects, and not being satisfied with superficial responses. At the same time, they should encourage narrators to respond to questions in their own style and language and to address issues that reflect their concerns.
- c. Interviewers should be prepared to extend the inquiry beyond the specific focus of the project to allow the narrator to freely define what is most relevant.
- d. In recognition of not only the importance of oral history to an understanding of the past but also of the cost[9] and effort involved, interviewers and narrators should mutually strive to record candid information of lasting value to future audiences.
 - 5. The interviewer should secure a signed legal release[10] form, ideally when the interview is completed. It is important to follow the guidelines of the partnering repository's policy on this, if relevant.

Preservation

- Oral historians, sponsoring institutions, and archival repositories should understand that
 planning for appropriate care and storage of original recordings begins with project
 conception.
- 2. Whenever possible and/or practical, oral histories—either individual or many within a project—should be deposited in a repository such as a library or archive that has the capacity to ensure long-term and professionally managed preservation and access. Regardless of where the oral histories ultimately reside

- a. the recordings of the interviews should be stored, processed, refreshed, and accessed according to established archival standards designated for the media format used;
- b. whenever possible, all efforts should be made to preserve electronic files in formats that are cross platform and nonproprietary;
- c. the obsolescence of all media formats should be assumed and planned for.
 - 3. In the interim before deposit, oral historians should
- a. transfer the original recording from whatever device was used, make an appropriate number of redundant digital copies,[11] and store those in different physical locations, as soon as possible after any interview is completed;
- b. document their preparation and methods, including the project's context and goals, for their own, the project's, and the repository's files;[12]
- c. organize and preserve related material for each interview—photographs, documents, or other records such as technical or descriptive metadata—in corresponding interview files.

Access & Use

- 1. In order to enhance accessibility of the audio or audio/video files, an archive should provide, when possible, written documentation such as transcripts, indexes with time tags linking to the recording, detailed descriptions of interview content, or other guides to the contents.
- 2. Whatever type of repository is charged with the preservation and access[13] of oral history interviews, it should
- a. honor the stipulations of prior agreements made with the interviewers or sponsoring institutions, to the greatest extent possible, including restrictions on access and methods of distribution;
- b. evaluate documentation, such as consent and/or release forms, and if they do not exist, make a good faith effort to obtain them;
- c. take all steps practicable to abide by any restrictions set forth by the narrator, while also making clear that certain legal challenges—such as subpoenas or open-record requests—may make some restrictions unenforceable:
- d. be prepared to provide timely access to material with considerations for expectations of narrators or project partners;
- e, when possible, consult project participants on how best to describe materials for public access and use.
 - 3. All those who use oral history interviews after they are made accessible should strive for intellectual honesty and the best application of the skills of their discipline. This includes
- a. avoiding stereotypes, misrepresentations, and manipulations of the narrator's words;
- b. striving to retain the integrity of the narrator's perspective;
- c. recognizing the subjectivity of the interview, including, when possible, verification of information presented as factual;
- d. interpreting and contextualizing the narrative according to the professional standards of the applicable scholarly disciplines;
- e. contextualizing oral history excerpts;
- f. providing a citation to the location of the full oral history.



HOW TO DO ORAL HISTORY

Suggestions for anyone looking to start recording oral histories based on best practices used in the Smithsonian Oral History Program at the Smithsonian Institution Archives.

What is Oral History? p. 1

The Six R's of Oral History Interviewing p. 2

Preparing for Oral History Interviews p. 3

How to Ask Questions in Oral History Interviews p. 4

Suggestions for Recording Oral History Interviews p. 6

Suggested Topics/Questions for Oral History Interviews p. 7

After the Oral History Interview p. 11

Readings and Online Resources p. 12



WHAT IS ORAL HISTORY?

Oral history is a technique for generating and preserving original, historically interesting information – primary source material – from personal recollections through planned recorded interviews. This method of interviewing is used to preserve the voices, memories and perspectives of people in history. It's a tool we can all use to engage with and learn from family members, friends, and the people we share space with in an interview that captures their unique history and perspective in their own words. Oral history stems from the tradition of passing information of importance to the family or tribe from one generation to the next. In the United States, the <u>Oral History Association</u> connects oral historians and provides a broad range of information on oral history.

<u>Technique</u>: The methodology of oral history can be adapted to many different types of projects from family history to academic research projects in many different disciplines. The interviews should usually be conducted in a one-on-one situation, although group interviews can also be effective.

<u>Sharing:</u> In collaboration with a well-prepared and empathetic interviewer, the narrator may be able to share information that they do not realize they recall and to make associations and draw conclusions about their experience that they would not be able to produce without the interviewer.

<u>Preserving</u>: Recording preserves the interview, in sound or video and later in transcript for use by others removed in time and/or distance from the interviewee. Oral history also preserves the ENTIRE interview, in its original form, rather than the interviewer's interpretation of what was said.

<u>Original historically important information</u>: The well-prepared interviewer will know what information is already in documents and will use the oral history interview to seek new information, clarification, or new interpretation of a historical event.

<u>Personal recollections</u>: The interviewer should ask the narrator for first-person information. These are memories that the narrator can provide on a reliable basis, e.g., events in which they participated or witnessed or decisions in which they took part. Oral history interviews can convey personality, explain motivation, and reveal inner thoughts and perceptions.



MARTHA ROSS: THE SIX R'S OF ORAL HISTORY INTERVIEWING

The oral history interviewer should strive to create a situation in which the interviewee is able to reflect widely, to recall fully, and to associate freely on the subject of the interview, and to maintain an atmosphere in which they are willing to articulate fully those recollections.

The following six considerations are basic to good oral history practice.

- 1. RESEARCH: Thorough preparation enables the interviewer to know what questions to ask and is essential to establishing rapport with the interviewee. Research pays off during the interview, when the interviewer's knowledge of names, dates, and places may jog the interviewee's memory.
- 2. RAPPORT: Good rapport is established with the interviewee by approaching them properly, informing them of the purpose of the project, and advising them of their role and their rights. A pre-interview call or visit to get acquainted and discuss procedures is recommended.
- 3. RESTRAINT: The experienced interviewer maintains rapport by following good interview techniques: being efficient but unobtrusive with equipment, starting at the beginning and proceeding chronologically, asking open-ended questions, listening closely without interrupting, following up on details or unexpected avenues of information, challenging questionable information in a non-threatening way, and generally maintaining an atmosphere in which the interviewee feels able to respond fully and truthfully.
- 4. RETREAT: Close each interview session by asking a "deflationary" question, such as an assessment of the experiences just discussed. All sessions should be planned and scheduled so that they conclude before the interviewee becomes fatigued.
- 5. REVIEW: Interviewers should listen to their interviews soon afterwards to analyze their interviewing techniques and to pick up details to follow up on in subsequent sessions.
- 6. RESPECT: Respect underlies every aspect of oral history respect for the interviewee as an individual, their experience, for the way they remember that experience, and for the way they are able and willing to articulate those recollections. Maintaining respect toward the individual interviewee and toward the practice of oral history interviewing is essential to success as an interviewer.

NOTE: Martha Ross is the "mother" of oral history in the mid-Atlantic region and taught at the University of Maryland in the 1970s and 1980s.



PREPARING FOR ORAL HISTORY INTERVIEWS

- 1. Select an interviewee.
- 2. Ask the interviewee if they are interested.
- 3. If interviewee is interested, set up a time and place for the interview. Also request any background information the interviewee might want to provide. Check about the best place somewhere quiet where you won't be disturbed. Request at least two hours for the interview session.
- 4. Write a follow-up email confirming plans for the interview that discusses the goals, legal rights, and how the interviews will be handled. Provide a very general list of topic areas and ask them to think about topics they would like to cover.
- 5. Conduct basic biographical research on your interviewee. Conduct internet searches. Read publications and profiles. Ask others about topics you should cover, stories they should tell.
- 6. Develop a chronology of the important events in their life. Develop lists of personal names and terms important in their life, such as geographic names where they traveled, names of important family or community members. Compile a folder of photographs of the interviewee and their world. These will prove invaluable in the interview when the interviewee gets confused or forgets names.
- 7. Rework the question outline, making it relevant to this interviewee, deleting topics that don't pertain to them, and adding areas, such as organizations they were involved in, etc.
- 8. With the equipment, <u>PRACTICE</u>, <u>PRACTICE</u>, until you can use it in your sleep. Practice interviewing family members and friends. Then delete all the files you've created, so the recorder is at full capacity. Make sure all the settings match the instruction sheet. Make sure that you have all the necessary pieces of equipment, such as the recorder power cord and an extension cord.
- 9. The day before the interview, confirm time and place.
- 10. Bring with you: equipment, extension cord, cell phone (in case of equipment problems), question outline, chronology, terms, photos, etc., legal forms, extra paper for notes and a pen. Also bring throat lozenges or hard candy, in case throats get dry. If possible, bring a camera and take photograph of the interviewee at the interview.
- 11. When you arrive, assess room for sound. Turn off equipment, close doors, and rearrange furniture into a comfortable arrangement facing each other close enough to hand photos but not too close. Set up equipment so you can monitor it constantly and discretely, without turning away from the interviewee.
- 12. Go over the list of topic areas again and permissions again.
- 13. Ask about any scrapbooks, news clippings, awards, etc., that they might want to bring out.



HOW TO ASK QUESTIONS IN ORAL HISTORY INTERVIEWS

- Find a quiet place to conduct the interview where you won't be bothered by telephones, family
 members, pets, traffic noise, etc. Get two glasses of water. Take a photograph. Turn off cell
 phones, etc.
- 2. Explain to your interviewee what you are doing.

Explain their legal rights.

Explain how interview is likely to be used.

Explain that they can choose what questions to answer and that the recorder can be turned off at any time.

- 3. Ask your interviewee to sign the deed of gift and cosign it yourself if you have one.
- 4. Use an outline of topics you wish to cover, with follow-up questions, that you have prepared in advance. Also bring photographs and a personal name and term list, and chronology.
- 5. Start with easy questions, such as their name, where and when born, names of family members.
- 6. Allow the interviewee to do the talking.
- 7. Ask "open-ended" questions, such as, tell me about, describe, etc., what do you remember about? If the interviewee responds with just a yes or no, ask how, why, when, where, who. What the interviewee chooses to tell you and how they choose to tell it is just as informative/revealing as the actual answers they give.
- 8. Avoid "closed-ended" questions that can end in a yes or not, or single fact.

 Examples, were you there? What was date of that? Did you like that?

 If you get a short answer, follow up with tell me more, who, what, when, where, how and why.
- 9. Do not ask leading questions was it this or that? Or I thought that the most important thing was.....

 These have been demonstrated to affect interviewee's answer and will taint your interview.
- 10. Ask one question at a time and try to ask simple questions.
- 11. Try to ask follow-up questions tell me more, who, what, where.
- 12. To stimulate their memory, use "statement questions" such as, "In 1956, you traveled to Tibet to conduct research. How did that trip come about?"
- 13. Focus on recording their personal experiences, rather than stories about others or that they have heard. If you're getting general stories, say tell me about your role, describe how you felt that day or dealt with that crisis, etc.
- 14. Don't worry about silences. Let the interviewee think and take time before they answer. Look at your outline and check off topics if the interviewee needs time to think.
- 15. Note what types of questions your interviewee responds best to and try to adapt your style to what works best with them.

- 16. Let the interviewee suggest topics to you that you might not have thought of.
- Allow the interviewee to drift off to topics not on your outline. These can be the best part of your interview.
- 18. After an hour or less, ask interviewee if they would like to take a break. Write down the last words as you turn the recorder off.
- 19. Provide the interviewee with feedback by nodding, smiling, listening attentively. Try to avoid too many verbal responses that will record over the interviewee, such as "Really!' or "Uh-huh, uh-huh."
- 20. Don't be afraid to politely question information that might be incorrect ask for a clarification, or say something to the effect, "Oh, I'm confused, I thought that Mrs. X was involved in that."
- 21. Reword questions that the interviewee does not answer they may not have heard what you thought you asked. But they have the right to not answer if they don't want to.
- 22. Do allow the interviewee to tell "THE STORY." Most interviews have a favorite story. They will fit it in somehow, so let it happen! Allow some repetition since additional details may emerge with a second version, but don't allow your interviewee to keep telling the same story over and over.
- 23. Bring visuals, if possible, to stimulate memory or ask to bring out photo albums of trips or family events, etc. Invite the interviewee to bring visuals to the interview.
- 24. Let the interviewee do the talking. Try to avoid telling your own stories, "Yes! When I was there...." or offering your own opinions. If asked for an opinion, explain that the interview is designed to record their point of view, not yours.
- 25. An interview usually does not last much longer than 1 1/2 to 2 hours. After that both interviewer and interviewee get tired and lose their concentration.
- 26. End interview gracefully, asking them to assess their lives and the topics you have discussed.
- 27. Ask your interviewee to spell any names or places you did not understand.
- 28. Clean up. Make sure you have all pieces of equipment.
- 29. As you depart, keep options open to return for an additional interview.



SUGGESTIONS FOR RECORDING ORAL HISTORY INTERVIEWS

- 1. There are many recorder options that will record an uncompressed preservation quality audio file. If you do not have access to a recorder, most smartphones have recording software that will record an MP3 audio file.
- 2. If possible, record an uncompressed WAV audio file at 24 bit.
- 3. Use external microphones if possible.
- 4. Check room for extraneous noise such as motors, fans, pets, traffic, etc.
- 5. Test the recorder to check the volume of the interviewer and interviewee and to see if it is picking up any static or surrounding noise.
- 6. Begin with an introduction that identifies who is being interviewed, who is conducting the interview, where, when, and the purpose of the interview.
- 7. Ask if you have permission to record the interview.
- 8. Avoid speaking while your interviewee is sharing. Instead, try to use physical cues that you're listening like nodding and taking notes instead of affirming "mhmms."
- 9. Upload the files from the recorder to your computer, external hard drive and/or the cloud to ensure you don't lose the file.
- 10. Name the file in a way you can identify it later. Ex: LastnameFirstname_Date_Interview#_File#
- 11. Make copies of your digital file. Save a copy to an external hard drive and/or the cloud.

2020



SUGGESTED TOPICS/QUESTIONS FOR ORAL HISTORY INTERVIEWS

- 1. What is your full name?
- 2. Do I have permission to record this interview?
- 3. Where and when were you born?
- 4. Who else was in your family?

What were your parents' names?

Are there any traditional first names in your family?

What type of work did they do?

5. Did other family members live nearby?

Tell me about them.

How did they meet?

What did they do for a living?

When did you get to see them?

6. What did your community look like outside of your family?

How did you meet them?

What types of activities would you do together?

Tell me about your neighborhood.

7. Where did your ancestors come from?

When did they come to the United States?

Where did they first settle?

Did your family name change when your family immigrated to the United States?

Are any of their traditions still carried on today?

What language did your parents and grandparents speak?

8. What games did you play when you were young?

What toys did you have?

Who did you play with?

Where did you play?

Did you have any hobbies?

Have your hobbies and interests changed over time?

Did you collect anything? Baseball cards, dolls, etc.

9. Tell me about your grammar and high school education?

Describe your grammar school/high school.

What subjects did you study?

Tell me about your interests in your school days.

Did you have any influential teachers?

Any leadership roles in organizations/classes?

What were your hobbies and interests as a child?

Did you read much, if so, what topics?

Did you belong to any influential clubs or organizations?

Did you have any goals/dreams for when you grew up?

How did gender roles affect you during K-12 education?

10. What holidays did your family celebrate?

How did you celebrate them?

What was your favorite part of the holidays?

11. Tell me about the house you grew up in.

How was it furnished?

Did you have your own room?

Where did you spend most of your time?

Did you move to another home while you were growing up?

Tell me about the new home.

How did your community change?

12. What were mealtimes like in your family?

What foods did you eat?

Who cooked the food?

Who cleaned up after meals?

13. Did you have any pets? Describe them.

Who took care of them?

14. What type of clothes did you wear?

Where did you get them/who made them?

When did you get new clothes?

15. How did your family get around?

Did you have a car? Did you use public transportation?

If you had a car, when did you get it? Who drove it?

Did you go on vacations in it?

When did you learn to drive? Describe your first car.

What kind of public transportation was available?

16. What sort of entertainment did you like?

What did you listen to growing up?

Did you watch TV growing up? What did you watch?

What large moments do you remember watching on TV?

17. Who was your family doctor? Describe them.

Do you remember any epidemics or diseases?

Did your family have any home remedies? If so, describe.

18. What was your first job?

Describe a typical work day.

How much money did you earn?

How long did you have that job?

What lessons did you learn?

Additional jobs and details – trace career path, changes

Tell me about any influential mentors.

What were the most memorable aspects of that position?

19. Did you attend college?

Tell me about your college years.

What school? How did you decide to go there?

What was your major?

Any influential mentors?

Did you do a semester abroad?

Describe your major interests?

What were successes/accomplishments and challenges/frustrations?

Tell me about any gender challenges you encountered in college.

20. How have historic events, such as 9/11, hurricanes, the Great Depression,

world wars, natural disasters, strikes, and now Covid-19 etc., affected you?

Did these events impact your community?

2020



AFTER THE ORAL HISTORY INTERVIEW

- 1. Download interview files onto your computer, following the instructions provided.
- On your computer, rename each file by right clicking on file and selecting rename. Rename it in this
 format: LastnameFirstname_Date_Interview#_File#, for example,
 JonesSandra_04-30-2020_1.
- 3. Click on file to be sure it plays properly.
- 4. Do not erase files from your computer until you have made duplicates.
- 5. Erase files from recorder, so the recorder will be empty for next interview.
- 6. Write a one paragraph summary of what the interview is about, providing technical details. Also list a dozen or so name and subject terms for indexing. This will be used to identify the interview for future use.
- 7. Prepare a longer list of all names, terms, etc. to use for transcription.
- 8. Prepare an introduction for the transcript that provides an overview of the interview for the reader and helps them understand what they are about to read. The introduction should include an opening paragraph that states why the individual was selected, i.e., the special significance or accomplishments of the individual; information as to the place and particular conditions of the interviews, e.g., the interviewee's home or office; research the interviewer did to prepare for the interview, i.e., books read or scrapbooks reviewed, and any prior relationship of special affinity between the interviewer and interviewee, e.g., friends for 25 years, grandchild or child. The interviewer should also prepare a biography of one or two paragraphs about themselves, including background and experiences of the interviewer related to the conduct of this particular interview.
- 9. Photocopy or scan the signed legal form, your question outline, chronology, etc.
- 10. Write a follow-up note to the interviewee, thanking them for their time and reminiscences.



READINGS AND ONLINE RESOURCES

Abrams, Lynn. Oral History Theory, second edition. New York: Routledge, 2016.

Boyd, Douglas A. Oral history and digital humanities: voice, access, and engagement. Springer, 2014.

Frisch, Michael. A Shared Authority: Essays on the Craft and Meaning of Oral and Public History. Albany: State University of New York Press, 1990.

Gluck, Sherna Berger, and Daphne Patai, eds. Women's words: The feminist practice of oral history. Routledge, 2016.

Murphy, Kevin P., Jennifer L. Pierce, and Jason Ruiz. "What Makes Queer Oral History Different." The Oral History Review 43, no. 1 (2016): 1-24.

Neuenschwander, John A. A guide to oral history and the law. Oxford University Press, USA, 2014.

Perks, Robert and Alistair Thomson, The Oral History Reader, third edition. New York: Routledge, 2016.

Ritchie, Donald A. Doing oral history. Oxford University Press, 2014.

Thompson, Paul. The voice of the past: Oral history. Oxford university press, 2017.

Oral History in the Digital Age https://www.oralhistory.org/oral-history-in-the-digital-age/ Oral History Association website, covering every aspect of oral history, from family and community oral history to academic oral history projects.

Smithsonian Folklife and Oral History Interviewing Guide https://folklife.si.edu/the-smithsonian-folklife-and-oral-history-interviewing-guide/smithsonian Contains guidelines Smithsonian folklorists have developed over the years for collecting folklife and oral history from family and community members, with a general guide to conducting an interview, as well as a sample list of questions that may be adapted to your own needs and circumstances, an information on preservation and use.

Oral History Association: https://www.oralhistory.org/

Oral History Discussion List: H-Oralhist http://www.h-net.msu.edu/~oralhist/ is the oral history discussion list.

Library of Congress, Oral History Lesson Plans http://www.loc.gov/teachers/classroommaterials/lessons/index.html#topic230

Vermont Folklife Center, Oral History Guide https://www.vermontfolklifecenter.org/events/oral-history-an-introduction